



Da Vinci Schools

Minutes

Da Vinci Schools Board Meeting

Date and Time

Wednesday February 20, 2019 at 6:00 PM

Location

Board Room, 201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245

Da Vinci Schools ("DV") welcomes your participation at its Board meetings. The purpose of a public meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") is to conduct the affairs of DV in public. Your participation assures us of continuing community interest in our schools. To assist you in speaking/participating in our meetings, the following guidelines are provided:

- 1. Agendas are available to all audience members at the door to the meeting.
- 2. "Request to Speak" forms are available to all audience members who wish to speak on any agenda items or under the general category of "Public Comments," which is time set aside for members of the audience to raise issues not specifically on the agenda. However, due to public meeting laws, the Board can only listen to your issue, not respond or take action. These presentations are limited to three (3) minutes and total time allotted to non-agenda items will not exceed fifteen (15) minutes. Non-English speakers who use a translator shall have six (6) minutes in which to address the Board.
- 3. The Board may give direction to staff to respond to your concern or you may be offered the option of returning with a citizen-requested item.
- 4. The chair will recognize such individuals who wish to speak on a specific agenda item at the appropriate time. When addressing the Board, speakers are requested to adhere to the time limits set forth, and to not repeat remarks made by those who preceded them.
- 5. Any public records relating to an agenda item for an open session of the Board which are distributed to all, or a majority of all, of the Board members shall be available for public inspection at 201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245, during Business Office operating hours.

The agenda and documents in the agenda packet will be made available, if requested, in appropriate alternative formats to any person with a disability as required by the

ADA, 42 USC section 12132, and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. To request a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, you must contact Alison Wohlwerth at 310-725-5800 at least 48 hours before a regular meeting, and at least 12 hours before a special meeting. (Government Code § 54954.2(a)(1).)

Trustees Present

A. Lofton, B. Meath, D. Brann, I. Mora, R. Bañuelos

Trustees Absent

C. Pipkin, J. Morgan

Guests Present

A. Johnson, A. Wohlwerth, B. Silvers, C. Levenson, Chris Ing, K. Parsons, M. Mayotte, M. Ring, S. Wallis, S. Weatherford, Samuel Renteria

I. Opening Items

A. Call the Meeting to Order

D. Brann called a meeting of the board of trustees of Da Vinci Schools to order on Wednesday Feb 20, 2019 @ 6:04 PM at Board Room, 201 N. Douglas Street, El Segundo, CA 90245.

B. Record Attendance and Guests

C. Approval of Agenda

D. Brann made a motion to approve the agenda.A. Lofton seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Public Comments

None

II. Information

A. From the Board

Mr. Banuelos congratulated Vicente Bravo, the Chief Administrative Officer, for joining the Hawthorne School District Board, and congratulated the Wiseburn Da Vinci sports teams, who performed well in CIF games. Most, if not all advanced in the tournaments. He also congratulated the FRC team, and thanked the Da Vinci team who worked on the policies.

Mr. Mora spoke of attending the Boys' Basketball CIF quarterfinals. He enjoyed the new facilities. He'd like to know the standings of each team.

Dr. Brann said that Mr. Diaz, the AD, told him that Da Vinci is in the Mulholland League, but is attempting to join the Pioneer League. Dr. Brann thanked Ms. Levenson for her support during the times when he brings people to tour the campus.

B. From the CEO

None, however, Dr. Brann mentioned having to reschedule the March Board meeting, as both he and Dr. Wunder will be out of town.

C. Presentation: Energy

Mr. Chris Ing gave a presentation. His energy management and finance firm, First Note Finance, only works with charter schools and Proposition 39. They work with about 140 schools statewide, and are based in San Diego. His company performed energy audits on all three Da Vinci sites: Douglas St, Aviation, and Isis Avenue. First Note Finance looked at one year's worth of utility bills for a baseline, then visited each site to obtain equipment inventories and a sense of operations. He created energy audit reports for each site.

Prop. 39 ended in June 2018, but the structure extends until 2021. The funding mechanism is no longer funded upfront, but is now a function of the annual budget cycle. There are currently zero dollars in Governor Newsom's fund, although that may change. Thus the firm creates compliant plans that are actionable if funding becomes available.

Solar energy is a focus for the 201 N. Douglas campus. Wish list: \$3MM, but can be scaled down. There would be \$200K retro-commissioning costs for the current HVAC and lighting systems.

The firms wrote up nine measures related to lighting, two for the HVAC retrofit, a cool roof, and solar systems on the Isis Avenue campus.

Next steps: Mr. Ing attended a webinar about a new zero-percent loan program being rolled out by the Energy Commission where the schools could break even on energy upgrades. The program divides up schools based on geography, freeand-reduced-meal participation, and energy savings. Mr. Ing can follow up with Mr. Mayotte if this is of interest.

Mr. Mora asked that the proposal from "Kyle" be looked at again and presented to the Board. Solar leasing was briefly discussed (zero outlay; power is purchased through the solar company, not utilities). The Board agreed that would be worth pursuing.

The Board thanked Mr. Ing for his work.

D. Presentation - Da Vinci-Cal Poly-Northrop Grumman Video

Mr. Steve Wallis introduced a video on the partnership between Da Vinci Schools, Cal Poly, and Northrop Grumman to feed the STEM pipeline with underrepresented populations. The videos will be shared with other entities so that the partnership concepts can be executed elsewhere. Mr. Wallis said that 60% of DVS graduates go into STEM majors. 15-20% are going into engineering majors. 10-15% of DVS graduates are being accepted to Cal Poly San Luis Obispo. Mr. Wallis spoke of visiting the roughly 30 students at Cal Poly SLO who are DVS alumni.

Mr Lofton spoke of his pride in the team, speaking of the initial monumental task to get the relationships started. The high school, university, and industry partnership is incredibly valuable to so many more people than just the Da Vinci community.

Dr. Wunder praised Mr. Wallis for his hard work.

Mr. Mora also praised and thanked the team, and asked for a copy of the video.

Mr. Ba**n**uelos asked how many students who are accepted to Cal Poly SLO actually attend. Mr. Wallis spoke of the competition that Cal Poly SLO faces private universities can offer a full ride to women and underrepresented minorities, so Cal Poly SLO seeks to offer support and familiarity to students of those demographics who go through the program.

Note: the video has been uploaded to the Da Vinci Schools website Video Gallery.

E. Financial Update

Mr. Mayotte presented the financial update. He gave an update on enrollment and ADA. Mr. Mora asked for a line with the budget added to the enrollment and ADA slide.

Mr. Mayotte spoke about the uncertainty of SELPA allocations, special education reimbursements, and fundraising.

Dr. Wunder spoke of DVX projections, saying that the DVX Director position would not be backfilled this year. He thanked Dr. Ring for her help with DVX.

Dr. Wunder presented a preview of the All Staff Finance meeting presentation. Mr. Mora asked to see a comparison with more South Bay districts and the ADA difference (funding DV receives vs. Dana Middle School funding). DV has about 25% more staff than the average California high school. DV faculty teaches fewer periods than the average - four vs. five. Dr. Wunder is confident in our collective ability to steer away from significant financial problems.

Mr. Mora wants to continue the discussion. Changes have to be made elsewhere to compensate for the four periods, higher counselor:student ratio, etc.

III. Approval of Minutes

A. Minutes of the January 16, 2019 Regular Board Meeting

R. Bañuelos made a motion to approve minutes from the Da Vinci SchoolsRegular Board of Trustees Meeting on 01-16-19.A. Lofton seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

IV. Consent Agenda

A. Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan Policy and Individual Site Plans

Mr. Bañuelos asked about the third paragraph of the first page. ("...shall review the CSSPs to ensure compliance with state law...").

The text was clarified and revised to read, "...shall review the CSSPs to support compliance with state law..."

R. Bañuelos made a motion to Adopt the Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan Policy and Approve the Comprehensive School Site Safety Plans. I. Mora seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Fees and Charges Policy

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Fees and Charges Policy.
A. Lofton seconded the motion.
The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

C. High School Graduation Requirements (2019)

Mr. Bañuelos asked for clarification on retroactive diplomas, and a revision of the word "superintendent" to Chief Executive Officer; however, that incorrect wording was only found in a redline copy of the document, and therefore no change was required.

R. Bañuelos made a motion to Approve the updated High School Graduation Requirements Policy.

I. Mora seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

D. Student Records Policy

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Student Records Policy. A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

E. Suspension and Expulsion Policy (2019)

Mr. Bañuelos asked for a definition on seclusion and behavioral restraints. Dr. Ring explained that the restraints are hands-on holds, and seclusion refers to exclusion in separate, isolative rooms. She went on to say that these are legal definitions and that the State wants this language used to protect students' due process. Da Vinci doesn't traditionally use seclusion or behavioral restraints.

Mr. Bañuelos asked about the removal of the expulsion appeal. Dr. Ring explained the expulsion process, which begins with a pre-expulsion hearing, followed by a hearing before an expulsion panel, followed by a finding/decision by the CEO. Da Vinci streamlines the process in order to fall within due process time constraints.

It was decided to consider this item at a future Board meeting (this would be a first read of the policy revision).

F. Nondiscrimination Policy Update

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Updated Nondiscrimination Policy. A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

G. Pregnant, Parenting, and Lactating Students Policy

Mr. Bañuelos asked about the "to the extent feasible, DV may provide educational or support services direct ... to meet the needs of pregnant students and their children" and "healthcare and prenatal care." Dr. Ring said that we currently do this through an outreach and referral program. DV is not funding the services. Mr. Bañuelos wanted this reworded. Dr. Ring pointed out that DV "may" provide services "to the extent feasible." He asked to remove the words "either directly" and leave "in collaboration." R. Bañuelos made a motion to approve the Pregnant, Parenting, and Lactating Students Policy.

I. Mora seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

H. Employee Lactation Accommodation Policy

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Employee Lactation Accommodation Policy.

A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

I. Section 504 Policy

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Section 504 Policy.A. Lofton seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

J. Sexual Harassment Policy

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Sexual Harassment Policy.A. Lofton seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

K. Suicide Prevention Policy (2019)

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Suicide Prevention Policy (2019 update).A. Lofton seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

L. Check Registers

I. Mora made a motion to approve the Check registers as presented by Management.

A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

M. Amazon Credit Increase

Mr. Bañuelos asked what the current level is. \$30K increased to \$40K.R. Bañuelos made a motion to Approve the Amazon Credit Increase.I. Mora seconded the motion.The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

N. College Readiness Block Grant (DVC)

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the College Readiness Block Grant (DVC). A. Lofton seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** upanimously to approve the motion

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

O. One-Time Outstanding Mandate Claims

Mr. Bañuelos asked for clarification on the amount already spent. Mr. Mayotte answered that it was a reallocation to help with cash flow.

R. Bañuelos made a motion to Approve the One-Time Outstanding Mandate Claims.

I. Mora seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

P. Da Vinci Extension New Hires

A legal opinion found that only a credentialed teacher could sign off on student work journals. The new temporary hires will instruct and sign off on the work journals until the end of the current school year.

D. Brann made a motion to Approve.

A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Q. Resolution to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding for Provision of Personnel Services

I. Mora made a motion to Adopt the Resolution to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding for Provision of Personnel Services.

B. Meath seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

R. Memorandum of Understanding for Provision of Personnel Services

I. Mora made a motion to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding for Provision of Personnel Services.

A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

S. Dean of Student Success

Dr. Wunder proposed a motion to direct Da Vinci Schools' CEO or his designee(s) to establish, advertise, and hire a Dean of Student Success (or other title) to support Da Vinci Communications. The job title doesn't represent all the duties expected to be accomplished.

Mr. Lofton asked why the model is different. A different population of students requires this Dean of Student Success position.

Dr. Brann reminded the Board that the decision was consciously made to hire more counselors than the average school. He feels it makes sense.

Dr. Weatherford said the title of the position may change. The job entails 50% working on proactive, culture building issues, and 50% intervention coordinator. The WASC committee responded positively to this idea.

D. Brann made a motion to direct Da Vinci Schools' CEO or his designee(s) to establish, advertise, and hire a Dean of Student Success (or other title) to support Da Vinci Communications.

A. Lofton seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

T. Alder University Graduate School of Education Agreement

Dr. Brann asked for clarification on this item.

Dr. Wunder said the Year Zero would start in 2019-20 for planning.

Mr. Bañuelos thanked Dr. Wunder for the answers to his questions. He suggests/ recommends moving forward to the 2019-20 year to allow for philanthropic funding. The other districts are lined up (ICEFF, WISH, Environmental Charter). Mr. Ba**ñ**uelos asked about the number of students/idea of cost to Da Vinci. Dr. Weatherford answered that four to six students are expected.

Dr. Wunder pointed out that DV is seeking the funding for the stipends.

D. Brann made a motion to Approve.

I. Mora seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

V. Closed Session

A. Conference with Legal Counsel Board entered closed session at 8:15

VI. Closing Items

A. Reconvene for Public Session & Closed Session Reporting

Open session at 8:46 PM. It was reported that no action was taken.

B. Adjourn Meeting

I. Mora made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
R. Bañuelos seconded the motion.
The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.
There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 8:46 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, A. Wohlwerth